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BEFORE TilE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION CELA 

In the Matter of 

Honeycutt for Congress and Scott 
Mackenzie, in his official capacity as 
treasurer; Andma! Honeycutt; 
Democnlts for Good GmertiDlent; 
David Knox 

) 
) MUR6138 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Shelley E. Garr, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission executive 

session on October 18, 2011, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of 6-0 on 

an amended pre-meeting tally, to take the following actions in MUR 6138: 

1. Take no further action regarding the reason to believe finding that 
Honeycutt for Congress and Scott Mackenzie, in his official capacity 
as treasurer, and Andrew Honeycutt knowingly and willfully violated 
2 U.S.C. § 441d(a). 

2. Take no furlher action regarding the rewJOn to believe fulding that 
Honeywtt fen: Congress and Scott Makenzie, ih his official capacity 
as treasurer, viollllltd 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and caution these respondents. 

3. Take no further action regarding thi: reason to believe findi1Lg that 
Democrats for Good Government and David Knox violated 
2 U.S.C. § 441d(a). 

4. Take no further action regarding the reason to believe fmding that 
Democrats for Good Government and David Knox violated 
2 U.S.C. § 434(c). 

S. Dismiss the allegation that Democrats for Good Government violated 
2 U.S.C. §§ 433 1md 43• by failing to register aad n:port os It political 
committee mel .carm.on this respaodaot. 
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6. Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis for Democrats for Good Government 
as recommended in Geaeral Counsel'• Report # 2 dated July 27, 2011 with 
edits as previously ciroulated. 

7. Approve the appropriate letters, including letters cautioning Honeycutt for 
Congress and Scott Mackenzie, in his ofticial capacity as treasurer, and 
Democrats for Good Government. 

8. Close the file as to all respondents. 

Commissioners Ba1al'ly, Halder, ~fc01hn II, Petarsao, Walther, and Weintraub voted 

affirmatively for the decision. 

Attest: 

of the Commission 
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BEFORE mE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

ID the M111ter of 

Honeycutt for Coagress and Scott 
Mackenzie, in his ofticial capacity u 
tteuurer; Andrew Honeycutt; Democnda 
for Oood Govemment; David ICnox 

) 
) MUR6138 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CBBIIFICADON 

I, Darlme Hmis, rc:cordiD& leCietary of the Federal Election Commission 

executive session. da hereby ecmtY dlat oa May 25, 2010, the~ taok 

tbe followia& actiOIII in the above-capti.oDed matter: 

1. Decided by I yo1l of{H) to: 

a) FiDel n:aaon to believe tbat Honeycutt for Ccm&ress ad Scott 
Mackeazie, in bis oOicial capacity u t~eas~~Rr, Jmowiasly 
and willfidly violalecl2 U.S.C.§441cl(a). 

b) Fiad MIIOD to beline tl:at A.llllew ~ kDoW:.agly ad 
williUilyvialalld 2 U.S.C.f441cl(a). 

c) F"md reuon to believe tbat Democnda for Good Govmlmeat and 
DavicliCDox violated 2 U.S.C.§441d(a). 

d) Piad 1a1011 to believe dud Hoaeyc:utt for Coqless IDCl Scott 
MacJnmi~ m iis o&icial..,acity • tw••. vioW 2 U.S.C. 
§434(b). 

e) Fmd .... to wJieve fimll'Mmaaatl for OOCil GoY11mmE llill 
David lllaz vmlllld 2 U.S.C.f434(c). 

f) Approve tbe Factualllld Lepl Allalyaes. • zecommmdecl iD the 
Pint Gea.eral Coualel•s Report dated February 26, 2010.1Ubject 
to tbe lwvisicml pmausly circulated aad punaiDt tc t1m m=etiDa 
cliscalsiaL 

B)Autt+iiiiFdle-af~pr--••••·*1· I ... 

wit+ .. im11ds 1.ster, W•ldiaa the illt&~• ofllpJIIOpliate 
intw•wptmils, dacnmmt ...... - depaeiti•lr.!pene•,. 
DeCIMII)'. 
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Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGaJm D, PeteneD, Walther and Weintraub 

voted aftirmatively for the decision. 

2. Failed by a vote of 3-3 to P'!! a motipp to: 

Pilld 118 DSOD to believe tbat Allclrew Hcmeycult. Houeyeutt for 
Ccm(pess 8lld Scott Mackenzie, in his oflicial capacity as b'eaSUIW, 

Deuu• · for Gaull Oo\Wiildi:at, c• David ICDmiWol.atllcl 2 U.S.C. 
§ 44lh(a). 

CommissiaDers Hunter, McGalm D aad Petmsea voted dirmatively for the 

moticm. Commissicmas Bauat.y, Walther and Weintlaub clissaDd. 

~ a.y. :;to l o 
Darlelle Hlrris 
ActiDa Sec.te1&iy oftbe Commission 
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 20463 

Andrew Honeycutt 
160 Deer Forest Trail 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 

OCT 2~ 2011 

Re: MtlR 6138 

Dear Mr. Honeycutt: 

,..... On December 1, 2008, the Federal Election Commission received a copy of a complaint 
alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended 
(''the Act''). A copy of the complaint was forwarded to you at that time. 

Upon iulther review cf the ailegatio111 contained id the nomJ,laint, on Mlty 25, 2010, the 
Commi.ssicn found mason to betie:ve tlJBt you knowingly and willi.Jlly violated 2 U .S.C. 
§ 441d(a), a provision of the Act. See the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis provided to 
you on August 9, 2010. Based on the results of its investigation, on October 18, 2011, the 
Commission detennined to take no further action regarding its previous re.ason to believe 
fmding. Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this matter. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public rcx:ord within 30 days. 
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files, 
68 Fod. Reg. 70426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Stattmelll of Policy Regarding Plucing First General 
CoWlSel's Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). 

If you have any cp1estions, please contact Shana M. Broussard, the attorney asigned tD 
this matter, at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Allen 
Assistant General Counsel 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 20463 

David Knox OCT 2~ 2011 
Democrats for Good Government 

I 
Riverdale, GA 30296 

Re: MUR6138 

Dear Mr. Knox: 

On December 1, 2008, the Federal Election Conunission received a copy of a complaint 
alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended 
(''the Act''). A copy of the complaint was forwarded to Democrats for Good Government and to 
you at that time. 

Upcm further review of the allegations contained io the complaiat, the Commimion, on 
May 25,2010, found that there is reason to believe Democrats for Good Government and you 
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(c) and 441d(a), provisions of the Act, with regard to reporting and 
disclaimers related to two communications. See the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis 
provided to you on August 9, 2010. Based on the results of its investigation, the Commission 
detennined, on Octdber 18, 2011, to take no further action regarding its previous reason to 
believe findings. Also on October II, 2011, the Commission dis1aissed the allegation that 
Dtmmcnnts ior Guad Governmem violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434 by failing to register and 
report 11:11 a political CDmmittee. Accordingly, the ConDl'lissionoL"'Jsed its file in this llllt1DI. Thr; 
Fas::tual and Legal Analysis, which mom fully explains the. Cw-nmission's dismissal, is enclosed 
for your information. 

Based on the information before the Commission, it appears that Democrats for Good 
Government may have failed to register and file reports as a political committee under 2 U.S.C. 
§§ 433 and 434. The Commission cautions Democrats for Good Government to take steps to 
ensure that its conduct is in compliance with the Act and the Commission regulations. 

Documents related to the case wi!! be placed on the public 1-ecord within 30 days. 
See Statement of Pelicy RDgarding Disclosuro of Closod EnfOJnem.tult eml Related Files, 
68 Fed. Reg. 70426 (Dec. 18, 2003) 1:1wi Statement of Policy :Regarding Placing First Cih:mmd 
Counsel's &parts on the Public H.ocord,. 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 {Deo~ 14, 2009). 
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If you have any questions, please contact Shana M. Broussard, the attorney assigned to 
this matter, at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Mark Allen 
Assistant General Counsel 

Enclosure 
Factual and Legal Analysis 
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

RESPONDENT: Democrats for Good Government MUR 6138 

I. GENERATION OF MATTER 

This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission 

("the Commis.sion"J by David Scott for Congress through its campaign manager Kwame Vidal. 

See l U.S.C. § 437g(a)(l). 

II. INTRODUCTION 

The complaint alleges that Democrats for Good Government ("DOG") received 

I 7 contributions and made an expenditure in excess of $1,000 in 2008, but failed to register with the 

18 Commission as a political committee. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434. Based upon the complaint, 

19 the response, and the available information, the Commission dismisses the allegation that 

20 Democrats for Good Government violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, and cautions the respondent. 

21 III. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

22 A Factual Background 

23 DOG is not registered as a political committee with the Commission or the Georgia State 

24 Ethics Commission, and is not registered with the IRS as a section 527 organization. DGG is 

25 comprised of a single member, its creator David Knox. According to DOG's website, it is "[t]he 

26 place to get the facts about Democrats who are really doing the work for Democrats." 

27 See http://www.democratsforgoodgovemment.com. However, the entire content of the website 

28 appears to focus on material opposing Rep. David Scott. See id. 
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Included with the complaint was a communication herein entitled "Corrupt," a 3.5 x 8.5 

inch double-sided card. One side of the communication begins with the heading "CORRUPT 

DAVID SCOIT," followed by a picture ofRep. Scott and the statement "David Scott is 

CORRUPT!!!" The communication then refers the reader to www. voteoutdavidscott.com. The 

communication also contains a depiction of the Democratic Party donkey logo and the tagline, 

"Your Vote Counts for Changer,. The other side of the communication refers to Scott as '1'fhe 

Worst Black Congressperaon," and includes a cllrtoorl depiction of Rep. Scott !ritting on a mound 

of cash with the U.S. Capitol in the background. Both sides of the communication contain a 

disclaimer stating that it was paid for by "DemocratsForGoodGovemment.com." See Complaint 

Exhibit B . 

The complaint also included an invoice dated August 26, 2008 from 48HourPrint.com in 

the amount of$1,385.75 for 25,000 double-sided copies of the "3.5 x 8.5 Rack Cards--

Corrupt." See Complaint Exhibit A. The invoice was billed to "Andrew" at 160 Deer Forest 

Trail, Fayetteville, Georgia, and includes a "blind shipping address" for "David" at 2326 Nicole 

Drive, Hampton, Georgia. The invoice "Ship to" addressee is David Knox at an address in 

Jonesboro, Goorgia. Public records indicate that Deborah and Andrew Honeycutt are the owners 

of the Fayetteville address. Deborah T. Honeycutt was the 2008 Republican candidate for 

Congress opposing the Democratic incumbent, Rep. David Scott, in the 13th Congressional 

District of Georgia. HFC is the principal campaign committee for Deborah T. Honey~utt, and 

her spouse, Andrew Honeycutt, is the Committee's campaign manager. 

David Knox personally designed and created the "Corrupt" communication. The 

available information does not suggest that DGG solicited or received contributions. The funds 

to print copies of "Corrupt" were provided by Andrew Honeycutt, who had known Knox 
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1 personally and professionally since 2003 through their membership in an Atlanta-area church. 

2 Knox asked Honeycutt for a personal loan to procure materials for DOG. Honeycutt provided 

3 Knox with HFC's debit card, which Knox used to pay $1,385.75 to 48HourPrint.com for copies 

4 of the "Corrupt" communication. According to Knox and Andrew Honeycutt, Knox later repaid 

S Andrew Honeycutt for the funds used by Knox for the purchase of copies of the "Corrupt" 

6 communication in five installments. At the time of the final payment, the total amount was 

7 deposited into HFC's aecounb See Honeycutt ior Congress Response to Commission's 

8 Subpoeno ("HFC Response") Attachment 3. 

9 B. Legal Analysis 

10 The complaint alleges that in calendar year 2008 DGG received contributions and made 

11 expenditures in excess of the registration and reporting requirements of the Federal Election 

12 Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (''the Act"). See 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434. The Act defines 

13 a "political committee" as any committee, club, association, or other group of persons which 

14 receives "contributions" or makes "expenditures" for the purpose of influencing a Federal 

15 election which aggregate in excess of$1,000 during a calendar year. 2 U.S.C. § 431(4)(A). The 

16 temt "contribution" is defined to include "any gift, subscription, loan, advante, or deposit of 

17 money ,or anything af value made by :eny person for the purpose of influencing any election for 

18 Federal office." 2 U.S.C. § 431.(8){A)(i). The term "expenditure" is defined to include "any 

19 purchase, payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit, or gift of money or anything of value, 

20 made by any person for the purpose of influencing any election for Federal office." 2 U.S.C. 

21 § 431 (9)(A)(i). Groups that trigger political committee status are required to register with the 

22 Commission and publicly report all of their receipts and disbursements. 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 

23 and434. 
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The Supreme Court has held that only organizations whose major purpose is campaign 

activity can potentially qualify as political committees under the Act See. e.g. Buckley v. Valeo 

424 U.S. 1, 79 (1976); FEC v. Massachusetts Citizens for Life, 479 U.S. 238, 262 (1986). The 

Commission has long applied the Court's major purpose test in determining whether an 

organization is a "political committee" under the Act, and it interprets that test as Jimited to 

organizatior!s whose major purpose is Federal campaign activity (i.e., the namination or election 

of a Federal candidate). See Poi.itical Committee Status: Supplemental Expbmation and 

Justification, 72 Fed. Reg. 5595, 5597, 5601 (Feb. 7, 2007). 

According to David Knox, DGG did not solicit or rccei ve any contributions, and the 

available information does not suggest otherwise. Therefore, Knox's repayment to HFC of 

$1,385.75 for the printing cost of''Corrupt," apparently came from Knox's personal funds, not 

DOG's funds. To the extent that Knox was the ultimate payor of the $1,385.75 for the printing 

of the "Corrupt" communication that expressly advocated the defeat of Rep. Scott, under 

11 C.F.R § 100.22(a), it appears that DGG, through Knox, made expenditures by way ofthe 

"Con11pt" communication. Therefore, DGG satisfied the statutory in excess of $1 ,000 

expenditure threshold for political oommittee status. Because DGG's sote activity to date has 

been advocating the defeat efRep. Scott in his reelection efforts, it also appenrs that DOG has 

met the Commission's major purpose test. As such, it appears that DGG may corlstitute a 

political committee under the Act. Nonetheless, under the circumstances present here, the 

Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses the allegation that Democrats 

for Good Government violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, and cautions the respondent. 

Knox stated that DGG has been dormant since 2008 and that its primary activity 

consisted of its websites, which were likely created and designed at minimal cost; however, 
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Knox sti11 maintains the websites, and the www. voteoutdavidscott.com website was recently 

updated.' The available information suggests that the "Corrupt" communication may have been 

minimally distributed. According to Knox, DGG does not have any bank accounts, and its only 

expense is a nominal monthly payment of$9.95 for webhosting. As evidenced by the fact that 

DOG through Knox had to borrow a relatively low amount of funds to finance the "Corrupt" 

commonication, it appears that 000 has no, or limited, funds of its own. Moreover, Knox stated 

that DOG hms made n.o solicitations and received no contrihotions, and the Commission has 

discovered no information to the contrary. Accordingly, considering DOG's lim~ited conduct and 

apparent minimal t.osts spent toward the "Corrupt" commWlication and DOG's minimal activity 

since 2008, the Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses the allegation 

that Democrats for Good Government violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434 by failing to register and 

report' as a political committee, and cautions this respondent. See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 

821 {1985). 

1 Knox recently updated his www.voteoutdavidscott.com website to include content alleging that Rep. 
Scott's conduct contributed to a county school district within the 131h Congressional District losing its accreditation. 
In addition, the website has been updated to include additional links to news articles critical of Rep. Scott. See 
www.voteoutdavidscott.com (last viewed July 15, 2011). 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 20463 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

KwameVidal 
2262 Mount Zion Road 
Jonesboro, GA 30226 

Dear Mr. Vidal: 

RE: MUR6138 

This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on 
December 1, 2008, concerning communications related to Honeycutt for Congress and 
Democrats for Good Government. Based on that complaint, on May 25, 2010, the Commission 
found that there was reason to believe Honeycutt for Congress and Scott Mzckenzie, in his 
offiabd eapKCity as treasumr (''Committee"), ami Aucbew Honeycutt kfttiWillgly and willfully 
violuted 2 U.S.C. § 44ld(a), the Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b), and Den1ocmts for Good 
GoveiDID.Bnt and David Knox vi'dated 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(c) and 44ld(a), provisions of the Fedeml 
Eleotion Campaign Act of 1971 ,_as amended (''t~e Act"), and instituted an investigation of this 
matter. Also on May 25, 2010, the Commission was equally divided on whether to find reason to 
believe tbatihe Committee, Andrew Honeycutt, Democrats for Good Government or David 
Knox violated 2 U.S.C. § 44lh(a). However, after considering the circumstances of this matter, 
on October 18,2011, the Commission determined to take no further action as to the Committee, 
Andrew Honeycutt, Democrats for Good Government and David Knox. At the same time, the 
Commission cautioned the Committee and Democrats for Gocd Government to ensure that their 
candnct is iD DCH.Upliance with the Act and the C01mnasiEm m:gubrtions. Finally, on Octbbef 18, 
2011, the Commission dismissed the aUegaticm mat Domocrai:s for Good Govern111ont violated 
2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434 by {railing to register and report as a political committee. Acc:ordiogly~~ 
the Commission closed its file in this matter. The Factual and Legal Analyses, which more fully 
explain. the Commissioa's dismissal and the earlier reason to believe fmdings, are enclosed for 
your information. 

Docmnents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See 
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files, 
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of F'olicy Regarding Placing First General 
Counsers Reports an the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). 



MUR 6138 (Honeycutt for Congress, et al.) 
KwameVidal 
Page2of2 

The Act allows a complainant to seek judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of 
this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8). If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 
694-1650. 

Enclosures 
Factual and Legal Analyses (4) 

Sincerely, 

Shana Broussard 
Attorney 
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

RESPONDENTS: Democrats for Good Government 
David Knox 

I. GENERATION OF MATTER 

MUR 6138 

This matter was generated by a Complaint filed with the Federal Election 

Commission C'the Commission") by David Scott for Congress through its campaign 

managelt Kwama Vidal1. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(l). 

II. INTRODUCTION 

The Complaint alleges that Democrats for Good Government ("DOG") and David 

Knox violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act'1 in 

connection with communications critical of U.S. Representative David Scott. First, the 

Complaint alleges that DOG's communication, "Voters," failed to include the proper 

disclaimer. See Complaint Exhibit C. In addition, the Complaint alleges that DOO 

fraudulently misrepresented itself as speaking on behalf of the Democratic Party because 

the "Corrupt .. communication included a depiction of the Democratic Party donkey logo. 

22 See Complaint Exhibit B. 

23 DGO and Dmrid Knox did not respond to the Cemplaint.1 Because the "Voters" 

24 communication failed to include a disclaimer and it was not disclosed as an independent 

25 expenditure, the Commission finds reason to believe that Democrats for Good 

26 Government and David Knox violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441d(a) and 434(c). The Commission 

1 The Commission forwarded the Complaint to DGG and David Knox on two separate occasions at two 
different addresses. Both were returned by the USPS as "undeliverable as addressed unable to forward." 
Subsequently, on March 25,2009, the Commission :forwarded a third notification to this new address. 
Finally, the Commission forwarded the Complaint to 000 and David Knox by Federal Express on 
April 22, 2009. Federal Express records indicate that the Complaint was delivered on April23. 
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MUR 6138 (Democrats for Good Government and David Knox) 
Factual and Legal Analysis 
Page2 

finds no reason to beJieve the allegation that Democrats for Good Government and David 

Knox fraudulently misrepresented themselves as acting on behalf of the Democratic 

Party. See 2 U.S.C. § 44lh(a). 

III. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

A. Factual Background 

In the 2008 general election, U.S. Rep. David Scott was the Democratic 

incumbent in the 131h Congressiona:J Diotrict of Geor·gia, opposed by Republican Deborah 

T. Honeycutt. Honeycutt for Congress ("HFC") is the principal campaign committee for 

Deborah T. Honeycutt. 

1. Democrats for Good Government and David Knox 

DOG is an organization created by David Knox. 

See http://www.democratsforgoodgovernment.com. DOG is not registered as a political 

committee with the Commission or the Georgia State Ethics Commission, and is not 

registered with the IRS as a section 527 organization. According to DOG's website, it is 

"[t)he place to get the facts about Democrats who are really doing the work for 

Democrat!;." See id. However, the entire content of the website appears to focus on 

material opposing a single cand:idute, Rep. Scott, inoludiog portions of local newspaper 

articles that are highly critical of Rep. Scott See iff. 

Knox is also the owner and operator ofDK lntermedia, a website development 

company. Both Knox and DK Intermedia were vendors to HFC for Deborah T. 

Honeycutt's 2006 and 2008 congressional campaigns; Honeycutt faced Rep. Scott in both 

general elections. The DK lntermedia website indicates it created an "informational site" 



N 
00 
ttl 
q" 

0 
til 
q" 
q 
C!) 

.-1 

..... 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 
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for Honeycutt's 2006 congressional campaign.2 According to HFC's disclosure reports, 

the Committee disbursed $250 to David Knox on February 28 and on March 13, 2006 for 

"website and photos," $750 and $350 on May 9 and July 7, 2006, respectively, for 

"consulting-graphics/website maintenance," and $350 and $250 on July 31,2006 and 

February 6, 2007, respectively, for "consulting-graphics/website." HFC disbursed $525 

to DK Intermedia on 1\~ay 7, 2008 for intemet consulting. 

The website for Demoamts for Good Government oontains a link to 

www.voteoutdavidscott.com.3 The site begins with a heading "Georgia's Congressional 

13th District Corrupt CongreSSman," and continues with a cartoon f~gure identified as 

Rep. Scott sitting at a desk surrounded by individuals identified as "Lobbyist" and piles 

of cash with the U.S. Capitol in the background. The website directs the viewer to 

.. Check Him Out and Vote Him Out!!!" Several pages into the website is the cartoon 

depiction of Scott sitting on a mound of cash also included on the "Corrupt" 

communication. The website concludes, "No Disclaimer Necessary- We only work for 

the government part-time (ourselves the rest of the time.) Sponsored by Democrats for 

16 Good Government!" 

17 2. "Voters" Communication 

18 A copy of the "Voters" communication at issue is included with the Complaint as 

19 Exhibit C. Both sides of"Voters" are headed with the same picture of Rep. Scott and the 

20 words: "Representative Scott's records indicate he cares more about his wealth and 

2 The website states that "tbls site Is DO loager a part of this portfolio. There Is DO support for this 
candlate [sic]." [Emphasis in original]. http:l/www.dkextra.com/portfolio/web_port.htm 
3 The website link, www.voteoutdavidseott.com ts now closeda however, the website c1111 be~d 
through the Democrats for Good Government website found at 
htJp:l/www.democratsforgoodgoverment.com/voteoutdavidscott.com. 
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MUR 6138 (Democrats for Good Government and David Knox) 
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comfort than about education, employment and health needs of the citizens of Clayton, 

Cobb, DeK.alb, Douglas, Henry, and South Fulton Counties. Check his record and vote 

him out." The communication then refers the reader to several websites.4 The other side 

of"Voters" below the header contains the word "WHY" and lists purported reasons such 

as "Tax Evasion" and "Misuse of Official Resources.'• Both sides of"Voters" include a 

tagline, "Time for a Change from David Scott." Neither side of the communication 

contains a disc!aimer stating who paid for the communication. Finally, the bottcnn 

portion of each side n~fers the reader to www. voteoutdawdsaott.com and closes witlr 

"Democrats for Good Government." See Complaint Exhibit C. There is no infonnation 

available regarding the production, distribution or costs associated with this 

communication. 

3. "Corrupt" Communication 

A copy of the "Corrupt" communication at issue is included with the Complaint 

as Exhibit B. One side of the communication begins with the heading "CORRUPT 

DAVID SC01T,"' followed by a picture of Rep. Scott and the statement "David Scott is 

CORRUPT!!!" The communication then refers the reader to 

www.voteoutdavidscott.com. The comrnunicadxm also contains a depiction elf the 

Democratic Party donkey .logo and the tagline, "Your Vom Counts for Change!" The 

other side of the communication refers to Scott as ''The Worst Black Congressperson," 

and includes a cartoon depiction of Rep. Scott sitting on a mound of cash with the U.S. 

Capitol in the background. Both sides of the communication contain a disclaimer stating 

4 The "Voters" allllmunication listed the following websites: http://www.beyonddelay.org/node/317; 
http:/lwww.goodwillhinton.com/rep david scottstinancial shenanigans: and 
http://www.citizensforethics.orglnade/30146. The website liaks are no longer accessible. 
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that it was paid for by "DemocratsForGoodGovemment.com." See Complaint Exhibit B. 

The available information does not indicate how this communication was distributed. 

B. Legal Analysis 

1. "Voters" Communication Disclaimer 

The Complaint alleges that the "Voters" communication did not include the 

required disclaimer. A political committee that makes a disbursement to finance a public 

communicatim1 aaunt include a disr:laimer. 2 U.S.C. § 44hi(a); II C.F.R:. § llO.ll(a)(l). 

Disclaimers are also requir11:d for public communications financed by any person that 

expressly advocate the election or defeat of a clearly identified candidate. 2 U.S.C. 

§ 441 d(a); II C.F .R. § 110.11 (a)(2). The tenn "public communication" includes "mass 

mailings" and "any other general public political advertising." 2 U.S.C. § 431(22); 

II C.F.R. § 100.26. Mass mailing is defined as a mailing by U.S. mail or facsimile of 

more than 500 pieces of mail matter of an identical or substantially similar nature within 

any 30-day period. 2 U .S.C. § 431 (23 ); 11 C.F .R. § I 00.27. The Commission has 

determined that campaign literature "distributed to the general public at their place of 

residonce ••. constitutes general public political advertising." See MUR 4741 (Mary Bono 

Committee) Factual and Legal Anaiysis (:iindin& reason to belh:ve that the Committee 

violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a) by failing to· include a disa:laimc-.r on campaign material left 

on doorknobs of residences). 

The disclaimer for a communication that is paid for and authorized by a 

candidate, an authorized committee of a candidate, or its agents, shall clearly state that 

the communication has been paid for by such authorized committee. 2 U.S.C. 

§ 44ld(a)(l). The disclaimer for a communication not authorized by the candidate sha11 
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clearly state the name and permanent street address, telephone number or World Wide 

Web address of the person who paid for the communication and state that the 

communication is not authorized by any candidate or candidate's committee. 2 U.S.C. 

§ 441d(a)(3). The Commission now addresses the communic:ation in question. 

The Complaint alleges that the "Voters" communication violated the Act's 

disclaimer provisions. The communication itself states neither who paid for it no1· 

whether it w:as authorized by a candidate 011 candidate committee. See 2 U.S.C. 

§ 441d(a). Dnvid Knox and DOG did not respond to the Complaint. The dissemination 

of"Voters" determines whether it is a public communication and thus required a 

disclaimerundertheAct. Seeid; II C.F.R. §§ 110.11(a)and 100.26. It appears that 

"Voters" may constitute a public communication in the form of general public political 

advertising. See II C.F.R. § 100.26; see also MUR 4741 (Mary Bono Committee) 

Factual and Legal Analysis. "Voters" expressly advocates the defeat of Rep. Scott with 

phrases such as "Voters vote him out," and "Time for a Change from David Scott." See 

Complaint Exhibit C; 11 C.F.R. § 100.22(a). Thus, the communication should have 

16 contained a disclaimer. See 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a). 

17 As to what the "Voters" disclaimer should have stated, the available informntion 

18 is limited as to whether DOG and Knox acted with the involvement of a candidate or 

19 candidate committee in the payment, production, and distribution of"Voters." If DOG or 

20 Knox acted without such involvement, "Voters" was not authorized by a candidate and 

21 thus required by the Act to include the name, pennanent street address, telephone number 

22 or website address of the person that paid for the communication and state that the 

23 communication was not authorized by any federal candidate or candidate's committee. 
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See 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a)(3).5 The line at the bottom of both sides of the "Voters" card, 

"Democrats for Good Government," does not satisfy this requirement. Because "Voters" 

appears to be a communication produced by DGG and David Knox and appears to lack 

an appropriate disclaimer, the Commission finds reason to believe that Democrats for 

Good Government and David Knox violated 2 U.S.C. § 44ld(a). • 

2. Independent E~peaditure Reporting for "Voters" Communication 

If DOG or David Knox .spent rnore than $250 on "Voters~" and the 

communication was not coox·dinated with .any candidate, DOG or Knox WRS required to 

file an independent expenditure report with the Commission. See 2 U.S.C. § 434(c). An 

independent expenditure is "an expenditure by a person expressly advocating the election 

or defeat of a clearly identified candidate" and "that is not made in concert or cooperation 

with or at the request or suggestion of such candidate, the candidate's authorized political 

committee, or their agents, or a political party committee or its agents." 2 U.S.C. 

§ 431 ( 17); 11 C.F .R. § 1 00.16. Under the Act, every person who makes independent 

expenditures in excess of$250 must tile a report that discloses iniormation on its 

5 JfOOO or David Knox paid for "Volers" but a candidale or candidale's committee. or ils agents, 
authorized the ct»mn1unication, ''rvoters" should have included a disclaimer pursuant to 2 U.S.C. 
§ 441 d(a)(2). The question then arises whether the "Voters" communication was coordinated with the 
candidate. If"Voters" met the criteria set forth in the Commission's regulations for coordinated 
communications, then ooo•s or Knox's payment for the communication would constitute a potentially 
excessive in1-kind contributio.t1 to the ccm.didatiJ committee. See 2 U.S.C. § 44ll(aX7XBXi); 11 C.P.R. 
§§ 109.21 and 109.%). The c:riteria for a coordinated communication coosiats of three standards- payment 
by someone other than the candida!e or he:: committee; satisfaction of one or more of the four content 
standards; and satisfaction of one or more of the six conduct standards. 11 C.F .R. § I 09.21. The payment 
standard would be satisfied if 000/Knox or another person other than the candidate committee paid ror 
"VoLeas." The co11tent sta11dard is satisfied because the comntunicaticn expRSSly advocates the defeat of 
Rep. Scctt. a."1d the coadt~tl standud of the cool'dinativn r:gula!ion!l would be satisfiod ifthe 
cornnaunication wu created at tlie ~equest or sugoation, rutoriaJ involva11omt. or IUbll!ntial di~eUS~ien 
with tha Andiaute, ODintmittuo. or hill apnbi. Bee II C.F .. I:.. § 109.21(d). line• tht~ CommissiDn lws no 
information at thill timr: regardina the costli of"Votea;•• or indicatiag 1hat a •m:Udate or candidate 
committaa VIIS involved wirh flhia «~mlntnuication, the Cormnission makes no detcmllin.W. IIi this time an 
to a poaihle resultiirls excessive coo1ribu!ion by IX"ru or David K.'lox. 
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expenditures and identify each person who made a contribution in excess of $200 in a 

calendar year and each person who gave more than $200 for the purpose of furthering an 

independent expenditure. 2 U.S.C. § 434(c). It is likely that the costs associated with the 

production and distribution of ''Voters" exceeded the $250 independent expenditure 

reporting ~hreshold. For example, HFC disclosure reports reflect that the Committee paid 

$1,3B5.75 for the production of the "Corrupt" communication. Therefore, the 

Commission finds reaso.a to believe that Democrats for Good Government atrd Dm~id 

Knox violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(c).6 

3. Alleged Fraudulent Misrepresentation 

Finally, the Complaint alleges that, by including a depiction of a logo similar to 

the logo of the Democratic Party on "Corrupt," David Knox, acting on behalfofDGG, 

fraudulently misrepresented that the mailer was disseminated by the Democratic Party. 

Complaint at 5. The Act prohibits federal candidates and their employees or agents from 

fraudulently misrepresenting themselves, or any organization under their control, as 

speaking or otherwise acting on behalf of any other candidate or political party on a 

matter which is damaglog to such other candidate or party. 2 U.S.C. § 441h(a).7 In past 

enfom.cment aoattaat dealing with fraudulent mi~rreprescr1tadon aUcgutions, the 

Commission has focused its analysis on whether the Respondent was acting like the 

"official" party organization. See MUR 4919 (Charles BaH for Congress); se.e also MUR 

6 There is an additional independent expenditure reporting requirement at 2 U.S.C. § 434(g) (persons that 
make independent expenditures aggregating $1,000 or more after the 20111 day, but no more than 24 hours 
before the date of an election. must file a report within 24 hours with the Commission describing the 
expendinare). In view oftbe tee•: of information as to the amount DGG or David Knox spcmt on "Voters," 
as well as to the timing of its distribution (it may have been disseminated within 20 days before the July I 5, 
2008 primary election) the Commission makes no detennination at this time as to whether section 434(g) 
~ing wn.1 aism mJCiirad. 
7 Section 44lh(b) prohibits the ftaadulmt saHcitation of fUnds. which n:ems to be further afiltd baa: when: 
the available iDionnathtn dotll not indicate that DGG "wed tb.e logo in cennectien wtth soliciting fim.dl;. 
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5444 (National Democratic Campaign Comm.). In MUR 4919 (Ball), the Commission 

found reason to believe that the Committee, Campaign Manager, and Finance Director 

knowingly and willfully violated 2 U.S. C.§ 44lh, and that the Committee treasurer 

violated 2 U.S.C. § 44lh, when Respondents, on behalfofthe Republican candidate in 

the California's l01
h Congressional district, disseminated a communication within days of 

the genel"al eleetfon to Democratic voters in the district that was purportedJy prepared by 

a fictii:ious local purty comrnittee, the East Bay Dcnnocratic CamrRittee, aad sigr1cd by a 

Democnrtic Congressman of a neighboring district that expressly advocated the defeat of 

the Democratic incumbent. The communication's text suggested that committee was a 

legitimate organization within the Democratic Party by including language such as 

~~Representing all Democrats in the East Bay." The communication urged the defeat of 

the incumbent but did not include a disclaimer identifying who paid for it or whether it 

was authorized by any candidate or committee. 8 

Unlike the communication in MUR 4919, in the instant matter, the "Corrupt" 

comrpunication cannot be construed as an instrument of an "official organization" within 

the Democratic Party. Neither the complete name of the organizatioR "Democrats ftJ1· 

Good Government" uor the use of rrbe word ''Demc1crat" is mfficient to conclude that 

Respondents attempted, to damage t.IJe Democratic Party. See 2 U.S.C. § 441h(a). 

"Corrupt" does not contain text designed to make the communication appear that the 

source of this communication was the Democratic Party. See Complaint Exhibit B. 

Although Deborah T. Honeycutt was the Republican nominee in the 2008 general 

election against Rep. Scott, the presence of the donkey logo on the "Corrupt" 

8 After an investigation, the Commission found probable cause to believe as to Charles Ball for Congress, 
its treasurer and its Q81lpaign manager and conciliated with these respondcats.. 
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communication does not rise to the level of a violation of section 441h{a). The donkey 

logo, which is a generic symbol of the Democratic Party, is minimally displayed on the 

bottom left portion of the "Corrupt" communication that expressly advocates the defeat 

of Rep. Scott. See Complaint Exhibit B. The available information does not suggest that 

DOG represents itself as an ann of the official Democratic Party structure, such as a 

district or local party committee as defined at II CJ~.R. § 100.14{b). Accordingly, the 

Commission finds no reason to belhwe that Democrats for Good Government and David 

Knox violated 2 U.S.C. § 441 h{a). 
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FEDERAL ELECriON COMMISSION 

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

RESPONDENTS: Honeycutt for Congress MUR 6131 
and Scott Mackenzie, m hia otlicial capacity 
as treasurer 

I. GIN£8ADON OF I!JATnR 

This matter wu perated by a Complaint filed with the Fedenl Election 

Commi11ion ("the Commillion") by David Sl:ott r. ~ tbnlqh iiB ~811 

IJ18DI&CI' KWII!!ft Vidll. S.l U.S.C. § 437g(aXI). 

II, Jr!JRODUCDON 

The Complaint alleps that Honeycutt for Congress and Scott Mackenzie, in his 

official capacity as cn:asurer \HPC, violated the Federal Blection Campaip Act of 

1971' IS amended r~e Act") in connection with c:ommunications cntic:al of Honeycutt's 

opponent, U.S. Representative David Scott. First, the Complaint alleges that the 

communication titled •-corrupt" included a disclaimer atatins that it Will paid for by 

Democratsfoa<iooc1Goya11ma1Lcom, ewm thoup an invoice llld HFC disclosure repon 

indiaate that HPC in &c:t .. id for ft. See Complaiut Exhibit B. Nat, the C!m!plai1t 

all.,._ that HFC did nCJC timely dila1nse ill paytDIIIIt far the "Canupt" c:~~~~~muniaatian. 

Fi-.lly, tbc Complaint allepa thai HFC iaudulaatly ~ itself a speakinJ on 

behalf of the De1110e1atic Party because the •'Corrupt" communication i~lucled a 

depiction of the Democratic Party donkey logo. S.ltl. 

In its Response, HFC aclcnowledps that the Committee made a disbursement on 

Aupst 29., 2008, in the amount ofS1,385.75 to 48HourPrinLcom. HFC also forwarded a 

pap tiom its amended 2008 October Quarterly Report that diaclosed this disbunement. 
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The timins and amount of HFC's payment corresponds to an invoice for the "Conupt" 

communication included with the Complaint See Complaint Bxhibit A and HFC 

amended 2008 October Quarterly Report pp. 1200. HFC did not otherwise address the 

UCorrupt" communication. 

As set forth belcw, the Commission finds reason to believe that Honeycutt for 

Consress and S.ou Mackell!ie, in his official CJ~~P=ity u • ._.., knowin@iy •d 

willft&lly violated 2 U.S.C. § 441 d(a) btcause il appiii'S that it authoriad and .. id far a 

communiaation that identified anather entit~ paid for iL In additien, becaua HFC did 

not disclose the disbunement for the •-corrupt" communication on its initial 2008 

October Quarterly Report, the Commiaion finds reason to believe that Honeycutt for 

Congress 111d Scoa Mackenzie, in his ofticial capacity u trcasura", violated 2 U.S.C. 

§ 434(b). The Commiuion finds no reason to believe the allegation that Honeycutt for 

Congress and Scott Mackenzie, in his official capacity as treasurer, fraudulently 

misrepresented themselves u actina on behalf of the ·Democratic Pm'ty. See 

2 U.S.C.§441 h(a). 

10. FACiUAL MiD ;er.u. ANALY"' 

A. hctul Jhclllrouad 

In the 2008 seneral election, Deborah T. Honeycutt wu the Republican candidate 

for Congress opposins the Democratic incumbent, Rep. David Scott, in the 13111 

Conpssional District ofOecqia. HPC is tbe principal campaip committee for 

Deborah T. Honeycutt, and her spouse, Andrew Honeycutt. is the Committee's campaign 

chairman. See Response. 
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1. De•oenll for Cood Government and David Knoa 

2 OOG is an orpnization oreated by David Knox. 

3 See htg,:/lwww .democratstbrgpodgovemment.wm. 000 is not registered • a political 

4 committee with the Commission or the Georgia State Ethics Commission, and is not 

S regist=d witH the IRS a a ledicna 57!1 cqanfzatim. Acconling to OOO's website, it is 

6 "[t]he pl110e IDJIII the facts alrout Dcmoa_IWts who arc JeBJly doins the wcdc for 

8 material opposing a single candidate, Rep. Scott, includina portions of local newspaper 

9 articles that are hiply critical of Rep. Scott. Seeld. 

I 0 Knox is also the owner and operator of DK lntennedia, a website development 

11 company. Both Knox .. d DK lntermedia were vendors to HFC for Deborah T. 

12 Honeycutt's 2006 and 2008 consreuional campaips; Honeycutt faced Rep. Scott in both 

13 general elections. The DK lntennedia website indicates it created an "informational site" 

14 for Honeycutt's 20U6 CCJiigressional ·campaip.1 Ac:c:onlng to HFC's disclosure reports, 

15 the Commit=e disbursed $250 to Dcvid KMx on Felmaary 28 8ftd an MMR 1!, 2006 for 

16 "website llld ~" $750 llld S350 • Matt 9 md July 7, 2006, .-pedively, f•· 

17 11CXlii11UitiDS-sraphicalwcbsitc maintcnancc," •Ill $310 _. $250 oq July 31, 2806 and 

II february 6. 2007, respletively, fi1r "consultina-grapbiafwebsite." HFC disbursed S525 

19 to DK lntennedia on May 7, 2008 for intemet consu1dll,l. 
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The website for Democrats for Good Government contains a link to 

www.voteoutdavidscott.c;om.2 The site begins with a heacling-Qeorgia's Conaressional 

13111 District Corrupt CongreSSman," and continues with a cartoon fiprc identified u 

Rep. Scott sitting at a desk surrounded by Individuals identified as "Lobbyist" and piles 

of cub with the U.S. Capitol i11 the backpand. The website dire~~~ the viewer ro 

-cbcdl, Him OUt mi Vote Hiln Out! I !• Se~l Pft11J1 into tt. •baite is the l8ltdon 

depialion ofS.:au siuilw ~•• ~Mund of cath • incll*cl oa tile "Cen:up&" 

commuaication. The welJsite c:oncludes, "No Disclaimer Necasary- We only work for 

the government part-time (ourselves the rest of the time.) Sponsored by Democrats for 

Good Government!" 

z. -corrupt" Commaalcatloa 

A copy ofthe "Corrupt" communication at issue is included with the Complaint 

u Exhibit B. One side of the communication begins with the heading "CCRRUPT 

DAVID SCO'ft'," followed by a picture of Rep. Scott and the statement -oavid Scott is 

CORRUP'I'III" lbe an11181licatkJII then nfers l1e Nader tu 

Deauxalil: P.cy dcDiey 1qpJ llll'd d• tasJino. •oyour VCl&c COUIIII f•r Chanpf" 1be 

other side of the communic&aion refers to Scott as wrhe Won& Black Cansreupenon." 

and iacludes a cartoon depiction of Rep. Scott siUing on a mound of cub with the U.S. 

Capitol in the 1Jackaround. Both sides of the communication contain a disclaimer stating 

that it wa paid for by '1leiDOCIIItiFOIGoodOovernmcnt.com." See Complaint Exhibit B. 

I 1'llc wdJilelink. pww.RM• re!rW,W"s'M'IaiiiW clalldi ...,,.., 1111 webltJu-.. be~~ 
dnuah the Dlnaocnts rar Good Oovennentweblke found at 
hiiJ;iiwws..._.lipgml,......,..,...d"'ri1=* '!'P· 
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Neither the Complaint nor HFC's Response provides information regarding the 

2 distribution of this commwlication. 
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The Complaint also provided an invoice dated August 26, 2008 fiom 

48HourPrint.com in lhe amounl of$1,385~75 for 25,000 double-siclecl"3.5 x 8.5 Rack 

Cuds- Corrupt." Complaint EXhibit A. The lnwicc wu billed ta •Andn..~" at 160 

Dee11 Forest Tndl, Fayettetrille. O••lia. and includ• a .. blind shipping llld"-s" for 

.. David" at 232.6 Nietlle Drive,, Hampton. Geurgia. T• fn'mice 11Ship ·io" allcln..., is 

David Knox •• an addrea in Jonesboro, GecqiL Public records indicae tllat Deborah 

and Andrew Honeycutt 1n the owners of the Fayetteville address. HFC disclosed a 

S I .liS. 75 payment co 48 Hour Print on August 29, 2008 for •Printing" that corresponds 

to the invoice. 

1. -cornpt" Commualeatloa Disclaimer 

The Complaint afteps that the -corrupt" communication did not include the 

requiNCI disclaimer. A political committee that lll8ks a disbumemenl to finance a public 

c:ommunicati• malt inclllde a disclaU.·. 2 U.S.C.§44ld(a); 11 C.F.R.§liO.Il(aXI). 

Di.tain.n ••Ill• n=qplml C. public eoJDII'aniaaiioas fillaDcoi1 b)' ay p1111a 6at 

expressly advacate the elction or defiat of a clearly identilal IIIICIWate. 2 U.S.C. 

f441d(a)i II C.F.R.fiiO.ll(a)(2). The tenn "public communication'' lncluclel "mmss 

maUinp" and "any other pneral public political adverdsiJII." 2 u.s.c. §431(22)i 

II C.F.R.§l00.26. Mus mailiq is defined • a mailing by U.S. mail or tacsimile of 

mon~ than 500 pieces of mail matter of an identical or substantially similar nature within 

any30-clayperiocl. 2 U.S.C.§431(23); II C.P.R. I 100.27. 1beCommiuion bu 
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detenninecl that campaip literature "distributed to the general public at their place of 

residence ... constitutes general public political advertising." See MUR 4741 (Mary Bono 

Committee) Factual and Legal Analysis (finding reason to believe that the Committee 

violated 2 U.S.C. f 441 cl(a) by failins to include a disclaimer on campaign material left 

on deerknubs of residences). 

Tile disclaimer for a c:mnrmulic:alion that is paid for and authorized by a 

candidate. an audlorial commilble nf a c:~ntlidate, or its apt~, shall cl•ldy 1t:te tbllt 

the communication has been paid for br such authorillecl committee:. .2 t.I.S.C. 

§44lcl(aXI). The disclaimer for a communication not authorizccl by the candidate shall 

c~1y state the name and permanent street aclclraa. telephone number or World Wiele 

Web address of the penon who paid for the communication and state that the 

communication is not authorized by any candidate or candidate's committee. 2 U.S.C. 

§44lcl(a)(3). The Commission now aclclresses the communication in question. 

The Complaint alleaes that HPC violated the Act's disclaimer provisions when it 

paid for a enmunicalion, -corrapt," that failed~ 11ate that the Ccnnmittc:e paid fo: it. 

1be available informatica•. fll'lall .. llldle Com•ittlil"a •......- anli ~ded 2008 

Octo._ Quau1a'ly llepart, and the inYOiac, He CompiMII KUilril A.1indk:81 tMt HFC 

in fact paid $1.385.75 for 25,000 -corrupt" -a.ck cards" on Aupst 29, 2008. HoweYCI', 

neither the "Conupt" communication itaolf, the Complaint, Response. nor other available 

information indicates bow the commuaicadon wu disseminated. The Committee's 

amended October Quaderly Report ineludea d~ents on September 5, 2008 to 

Donald W. Allen II, in the amount of$1 ,000.00 for conaultinafcan'VBIIiJII and on 

September 25, 2008 to Dan P. Youns. in the amcxmt of $4,000 for consultiiJ&'c:anwllin& 

;t .. 
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which may be related to the di~~emination of-conupt." If the communication qualifies 

2 u a public communication. i.e., if it was mass mailed,-. I I C.P.R. I I 00.27, or 

3 otherwise qualifies u general public political advertising. the communication would need 

4 to contain a disclaimer statina that HFC paid for and authorized the communication. See 

S 2 U.S.C. f~ld(a)(l). Because the communication did not include such a disclaimer, 

6 HFC may han violate• 2 U.S.C. § Mlcl(a). 

7 111• available infbrln.-ion further su.-. .that such a violation may have been 

8 knowing and willfUl. 1be phrase knowing 8IVI willfial indicates that "actions [were] takoa 

9 with tull knowledge of all of the facts and recop.nition that the action is prohibited by 

10 law." 122 Cong. Rec. H 3771 (daily eel. May 3,1976); see t118o AFL-CIO "· FEC, 621 

II F.2d 97-98, 101-02 (D.C. Cir.), em. denied, 449 u.s. 982 (1980) (notina that a '\villfial" 

12 violation includes "such reckless disreprd of the consequences u to be equivalent to a 

13 knowins. conscious. and deliberate flaunting ofthe Act. • but concludlns on the facti 

14 bofcn it that t.'lis andard Wll not mel); Ndfl0111l Right to WOlf Comm. v. PEC, 716 F.2d 

IS 1401, 1403 (D.C. Cir. 1913) (same). The available inforration Indica~ that 81e 

16 COIIIRiittee, tlnush its ~--Ancbw HofiiiiiOutt, orclmecl the "CODUpt" COJ .... ication, 

17 and• indi-- by me 48HaurPrlnt.coa iavoiao, pro1tdeclb pc~R~&llddr-. oftho 

18 caadidate ead c:ampaip chairna as the billina addreas. However, ~pt" includes a 

19 disclaimer, 11Paid tbr by DemocratafaiOoociOovemmcnt.com." and contains the same 

20 headline, "The Wont Black Congresspenon," and cartoon depiction of Rep. Scott 11 

21 included on the ooa website. 

22 HFC's apparent etrorll to try to hide its involvement with the "Corrupt" 

23 communication ao that any recipients would not know that Andrew Honeycutt or the 
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MUR 6131 (Honeycutt for Canps) 
factual and Lcpl A•lysll ... 
Committee authorized and paid for -corrupt" further suppons a recommendation that 

HFC and Andrew Honeycutt knowingly and wiiUblly violated the Act. HFC's Response 

doea not aclclras any relationship with 000 or David Knox; however, the available 

infonnation indicates an ongoing rclatiunship between HPC and David Knox. See 8Upl"tl 

pp. 3 ln. 10-19. In addition, the nvice at Complaint Exhibit A further NppOtts this 

onsoin& ntlationship blatl• it lilts Bile .. ., "Andmw" IDd lhe billin& address filr thD 

candidate ud h• p11111 and aampaip1 ahaillllan, Andrew Hcmey...at. as well•lha 

name "DaYid." s.e uprG pp. S ln. 3-11. By payina for a communication with a 

disclaimer stating that a third-party cqanization paid for it. HFC attempted to c:onc:eal its 

identity u the person that authori.ct and .-id for the 25,000 rack cards. HPC attempted 

to avoid any explicit connection bctwccn the "Corrupt" eommunication and the 

Honeycutt campaip by stating that 000 paid for the "Corrupt" c:omm1Diication.3 Thus. 

Respondents appear to have knowingly and willftally violated the Act. Acconliqly, the 

Commialon finds reuen to 'believe that Honeycutt tbr Congras and Scott Mackenzie, in 

his ofticial capacitJ • ..._. ........ knowinaly .... "Wtllfially violated 2 U.S.C.§ +tld(a). 

HFC's clisc:loarL~ repadlllllllt dl~~:lose all dillDnemmtl. S.e 2 UI.C. 

f 434(b)(4). HPC did not disclote the $1,385.75 ctiabuncment to 48HourPrint.com for 

the -corrupt" communication in ita initial October Quarterly Report filed on October IS, 

2001. The Complaint wu initially filed on October 21, 2008, but wu returned to the 

1 Tile Gllldicllfe. polillal caaun-lllll..,r-ta.J ..._... weniiiiCplrilnald. HGIIC)'Cidt Wll& 

c:-Qdete In 2001• well a 2008-' HPC'1 ••-· Saaa Mabnzle. ila '7BC C..pl.._ Oftiaer" 
with laW on., a 'llr ........ D.C. fOIIdc.l --..nna. HPC•• diiCIIIIUI'C llpOM bulltllllll -.J 
activit)' in IIDCIUIIII .-•aa Sl.llllllliolllnd $4.7 mUllan for the 2006111d 2001e1ec:tion CJdll. 
awpwdvcly. 
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MUR 6138 (Haneycuu for Ccnlpa) 
FaciUIIIIICI Lcpl A•lysis ,., 
Complainant to correct a form defect; the Complaint was properly submitted on 

November 26, 2008. On October 22, 2008, the Committee tiled an amended quarterly 

report that disclosed the 11,385.75 disburlement.4 See 2 U.S.C. § 434(b). HFC thus 

amended the report after the Complainant filed the Complaint. Because the disbursement 

was not di£1oaat on PIFC's origidll Oelober Qaanerty Repmt, tha Commiaian finds 

capacity • tl'ellllar', violllecl2 U.S.C. § 434(b) by &ilin& to timely diaciD18 the 

disbursement. 

3. AUepd llnud•leat Mlsrepraeatadoa 

Finally, the Complaint alleges that. by inclucHns a depiction of a logo similar to 

the loso of the Democratic Party on "Conupt," Andrew Honeycutt, actins on behalf of 

HFC &audulently misrepresented that the mailer was diueminated by the Democratic 

Party. Complaint at 5. The Act pmhibits &deral candidates and lheir employees or 

qents &om hucialently mi•IJ'Iaaftins themselves, cr any orpnizadon ander tfteir 

contftJI, • speakin1 or ollerwisl actins on behalf of ay ott.· -.diclkl= er Jllllitiesl party 

on aiiiiUbr 1tdlb:h is clan.sias m .e otlllr amdidate or pa~IJ. 2 U .S.C. § 441b(•t).5 Ia 

Commission has f~ ill analysis on whellaer the RespoRdent wu ac:dnslike tha 

.. official" party orpnlzation. See MUR 4919 (Charles Ball for Congreu)i •• aJ.o MUR 

5444 (National Democratic Campaip Comm.). In MUR 4919 (Ball). the Commiaion 

foulld reason to believe that the Committee, Campaian Manager, and Finance Director 
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Factual and Lepl Analysis 
PlpiD 

knowingly and willfully violated 2 U.S.C. § 441 h, and that the Committee treasurer 

violated 2 U.S.C. I 441h, when Respondents, on behalf of the Republican candidate in 

the California's I at' Consressional district. disseminated a communication within days of 

the general election 10 Democratic votcn in me district mat was pwponedly JnpllleCI by 

a fictltioualbal P1ftY eommittee, the Bat 81!)'' Demeuratic C01nmittee, mad si§ted by a 

Dollocnatic Corw-•~a of a nmptJar.i111 district d• ex~ 1dracllttl:l tt. def•t of 

the Dcmecntic iacvmhtlr.lt. The :ommuni•tioa's text s'IBW.ad that ;eamittee Will a 

leaitimate orpnialion within the Democratic Party by includiaslaiJIWF sud. • 

"Repn:sentins all Democrats in the East Bay." 1be communication urged the defeat of 

the i~bent but did not include a disclaimer identifying who paid for it or whether it 

was authorized by any candidate or committee.' 

Unlike the communication in MUR 49J 9, in the instant mau., the "Corrupt" 

communication cannot bo construed as an instrument of an "official orpnization" within 

the Democratic Pany. Neither the complete name of the orpnlzation "Democrats for 

Good Oowrament" nur the use of the word •nemoetat" is r.:fliciem to conclude thiR 

Rel..-nct.a _...,_,.., clamlraD lbe Jll,ma;aaiw, Pany. S•l u.aC.§114th(a). 

-corrqpt" dOIDI not CD!diila text claJped 10 make lba CODUDuaialion appear tbat the 

source of this communication was the Democratic Party. S. Complaint Exhibit B. 

Althoup Deborah T. Honeycutt was the Republican nominee in the 2008 pneral 

election apinst Rep. Scott. the presence of the donkey lop on the MCorrupt" 

communicadon does not rise to the level of a violadon ofiiCtion 441h(a). The donkey 

loso. which is a paeric symbol oftbe Democratic Party, is minimally displayed on the 

6 After 1D iaYclliplicm. thD Coallllillloa found probUic CIIIIOID bcBewaiD a.lcs Ball tbrCcqpas. 
ltltnuun:rlllditl .................... wllh ............. 
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bottom left portion of the "Comapt" oommunication that expressly advocates the defeat 

of Rep. Scott. See Complaint Exhibit B. The available information does not SUB&est that 

000 represents itself as an ann oflhe omcial Democmtic Pany structure, such as a 

district or local party committee as defined at II C.P.R. § J00.14(b). Accordingly, the 

Co111111ission fmds no reason to beliere ltaat HOJie7CUlt for Congress and Scott 

Mackenzie, in ~is official eapaaity a truaa=n·, violattd 2 U.S.C. § 441h(a). 
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FEDERAL ELICI'ION COMMISSION 

FACfUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

RESPONDENT: Andrew Honcycutl MUR til38 

I. 
GENERATION OF MATTEI 

10 
11 This me.tter was generated by a Complaint filed with the Federal Election 

· - -·12·· Conunis8ion ( .. the.tomrinsslon•.,-~»y llmiiCl Scott "for CGn&feii tliiliuBJi iii ca.iiaiii\" 

l:t maftl'll•l<.wame Vidal. See 2 U.S.C.. § 437s(a)(l). 

14 D. IN]'BODDCftOJJ 
15 
16 The Complaint alleges that- Andrew Honeycutt f'Honeycutt"), campaign 

17 chainnan for Honeycutt for Congress f'HPCj and spouse to candidate Deborah T. 

18 Honeycutt, violated the Eecleral Election Campaign Act of 1971, u amended rtfae Act") . 
~ :.. 

19 in coimection with commiimcations critical ofHoneYcuu•s opponena, U.S. Repu~entative 

20 David Scott. First, the Complaint alleges Andrew Honeycutt. a an apat ofHFC, 

21 authorized 1ft= prc;duction of the cvmrnanication utted "Cornlift" that incladecla 

22 disclaia• stating that it.,. paid for by Dtlno..wforOoodOowmmiRt.COIIt, even 

23 tbquab alnYai1111 am HFC ---= DII!IOrt laiaate ialt HPC in lilct paid ior b. .tre 

24 CompPahlt&hibll ~·In rdclllloa. the Complaint lllepl·lbal AlldBw IMaloycutt. u. 
2S agent ofHPC. fraudulently misrepnae .. ted hl1111elfu 8pl8ldDs on btlhalfaf'tfto 

26 Democratic Party becauso the ''Conupt" communication included a depiction of the 

27 Democratic Party donkey lop. See. id. 

28 As set forth below, the Commission finds reason to believe that Aacbw 

·· · · -,.- Hcm1yedlt kdowlngly and willfully violated 2·U.S.C. f·44ht(a) ~It appeara tkat 

.... : :· ... 
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MUll6138 (Anckew Honeycutt) 
Factual and Lepl Analysis 
Paae2 -··-

Honeycutt authorized and HFC paid for a communication that identified another entity 

paid for it. Further, the Commission finds no reason to believe the allegation that 

Andrew HoncYQJU, as an agent ofHFC, ftaudulently misrepresented himself as acting on 

behalf of the Democratic Party. See 2 U.S.C. § 44lh(a). 

Ill. FA.CfUAL &ND LBGAL ANAL\'SIS 

A._ FadU~l.Baeq~uncf 

In the 2008 general election-, Deborah T. Honeycutt was tho Republican candidate 

fer Congress oppDsing the Derucmaie incud'Mmt, llep. David Scott. ill the 136 

Consressional District of Oecqia. HFC is the prineipaJ campaign committee for 

Deborah T. Honeycutt. The available infonnation indicates that Andrew Honeycutt. the 

candidate•s spouse, is the Committee's campaip chairman. 
. ~ 

1. Democrats fqr .Good Government alld David Kno:a · 

000 is an organization created by David Knox. 

See htto://www.demqqeqsfomoodaovemmenLcom. 000 is not registered• a political 

committee with the Commission or· the Georgia State IJthie8 Co~ission, and is not 

registwl'ed widt the IRS • a sedton 527 cqonillldOR. AIICOnling ta: DGG's website, it is 

''[t]lw pJacc. set the facts .... Dnnoatlwt. •o really-. the~ ... 

matarial oppo1i111 a sin&]e cindidate, Rep. Scott, includiJig portion& of local newspaper 

articles thal are hiply c:ritical of Rep. Scott. Seeld. . 

Knox is also the owner and operator of DK Intermeclia. a website clevelopment 

company. Both Knox and DK Intennedia were vendors to HFC for Deborah T. 

Honeycutt's 2006 and 2008 congressional campaips; Honeycutt faced Rep. Scott in both 

J 
I 

.I 
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Fac:tual and Legal Analysis. 
Pagel 

general elections. The DK lntennedia website indicates it created an "informational site" 

for Honeycutt's 2006 congressional campaign.1 According to HFC's disclosure reports. 

the Committee disbuned S2SO to David Knox on February 28 and on March 13. 2006 for 

••website and photos,t' S7SO and S3SO on May 9 and July 7, 2006. respectively, for 

"consulting-graphics/website maintenance," and S3SO and S2SO on July 31.2006 and 

F~~ ~ •. ~007. n:spe:ctively, for "coRIUiting-pephiOIIwebslte." HFC diAbarsed $525 . - . . . . . -
to DK lntBrmedia on May 7, 2008 for internlt C8111Ulting. 

The websiut for Democrars. for Oood Oovmuneal contains a link to 

www. votequtdavidscott.com. 2 The site begins with a heading "'eorgia 's Congressional 

13aa District Corrupt CongreSSman," and continues with a cartoon &pre identified as 

Rep. Scott sitting at a desk sunoundecl by individuals-identified as •Lobbyist" and piles 

of cash with the U.S. Capitol in the -und. 1be website directs the viewer to 

"Check Him Out and Vote Him Outlll" Several pages into the website is the cartoon 

depiction of Scott sittins on a mound of cash as included on tbe •-corrupt" 

communicati011. The wbsite cuncludes, -No Disclaim• Nectall')'- We only 11.1erk foto 

the ..,._.Ill part-time (aarseivea th• nat •=fthl tiu&) s,-otl by Demetr111 for 

Goacl Govarnla.._U" 

I 'l1ae weWt8 ltltll that "'IIII lite II DO ...... a part eftldl portl'oJio. Tllen II •olllppOI'IIDr ... 
. ......... (lla]:-11•+ ..... llamta'D'IJ hap://www.cbdll.ocna/J.adf9~~ , . 

I The welllife fink, wmy...,..,.*"ri'eeJn" gpg is DOW o'-d; however. the website- bo UCII•ed 
tbrouab the Dcmocncllbr Ooad Ocwalllltllt we1llite found II 
hlgr.Jbmr.demacraMfgapodamnnent,~. 
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MUR 6138 (Andrew Honaycut~) 
Factual and Lepl.oAnalysis 
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2. "Corrupt" Communication 

A copy of the .. Corrupt" communication at issue is included with the Complaint 

as Exhibit B. Qne side of the communication begins with the heading "CORRUPT 

DAVID SCOTI'," followed by a picture ofRep. Scott and the statement •oavid Scott is 

CORRUPT! II" The communication then refers the reader to 

www, veteoutdayidseott.com. The ceiRObinie~tion aim ccabli• a defiction of the 
• I I •• •• •• • • oo ••• 1111 ol • I I II f I o • • I I 

Democratic Patty donlcey logo and the capne, "Your Vcte Ce•tl ·for CbaiJie!" The 

oGler aide oldie communication refCrs to Scott as •-me Worst Black Conp:siperson," 

and includes a cartoon depiction or l.ep. Scott sitting on a mound of cash with the U.S. 

Capitol in the background; Both aides of the communication contain a disclaimer statina 

that it was paid for by "DemocratsForOoodOovemmenLcOm." See Complaint Exhibit B. 
. .. 

·Neither the Complaint nor other available info~qn lndicata how the communication 

was distributed. 

The Comp~aint also provicled an invoice dated August 26, 2008 from 

48H01DPrintcom ill the amount of S1,385.7S for 25,000 double-sided "3.5 x 8.5 Rack 

Cards - Coi1Ullt" COmplaint B*ibit A. 11Rl ilcvoico 1WIIIflled to "Andrew" It 160 

Deer P~-Trllll. Fayettaville, Oeoqia, and iacludea a ''blilld shipping uldrae'' fta 

"David" at 2326 Nicole Drive, HIIDpton. f'JfJOtlia. The invoice "Ship tsl' addressee is 

David Knox at an adclless io Jonesboro, OeoiJia. Public records indicate that Deborah 

ad Andrew Honeyeutt are tbe owuen oftbe Fayetteville aclcbea. HFC disclosed a 

$1,385.75 payment to 48 Hour Print on August 29. 2008 for "Printing" tbat carrcsponcls 

22 to- the invoice. 

23 
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MUk 6138 (Andrew Honeycutt) 
Factualw.l:.cpl Analysis 
Paacs · 

B. Legal Analysis 

1. "Corrupt" Co~munlcatlon· Disclaimer 

The Complaint alleges that the C.COnupt" communication did not include the 

required disclaimer. A political committee that makes a disbW8elnent to finance a public 

communication must include a disclaimer. 2 U.S.C. § 44ld(a); II C.F.R. § IIO.II(a){l) • 

. Discl~i~ .... also M~uired for ... blic cam._icationa financed by ay penon thac -·· ............ ···-····-· .... ······ ..... -·· .. 

oxprwsly advocate the election w defeat of a clearly 'dentitied candidate. 2 tJ.S.C. 

§ 44Jd(a); II C.P.R. f J JO.Il(a)(2). 111e IDnD •public commuaicalion" iacludn ~ .. 

mailinp" and .. any other general public political advertising." 2 V.S.C. I 43 1(22); 

J I C.P.R. I I 00.26. Mass mailins is cle~ned u a mailing by U.S. mait or fiaimile of 

more than SOO pieces of mail matter of an identical or substanti~ny similar nature within. 
.. 

any 30.:clay period. 2 U.S.C. § 431(23); II C.P.R..§ 100.2t ,The Commi•ion hu I 

determined that campaip literature .. distributed to the gcaeral public at their place of 

residence ••• c:.cnatitutea pn .. J public political advertising." See MUR 4741 (Mary Bono · 

Co~~t~nittec) Pactualand l&epl Analysis (&ndifts reaiOft te 'believe that tile Commibe 

violaal! U.S.C. § 441d(•iJ by ilil.in& to iMiua a cliaaWmc Cll1i.unpalp material left 

on doolbto•vr..-...). 

Yhe disclaimer for a ceaunur.dcalion tft:d is plitl fared IUfhori.zed by a 

candidate, a authorized committee of a candidate, or ita apnts. shaD clearly state that 

·the communioation hu been pakl for by such authorized committee. 2 U.S.C. 

§ 441d(aXl). 1'bc disolaimer for a com~unlcation not authorized by tho candidate shall 

Clearly state the name and permanent 11reet address, telephone number or World Wide 

Web ad~ of the penon who paid for the communication and state that the 
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communication is not authorized by any candidate or candidate's committee. 2 U.S.C. 

§ 44ld(a)(3). The Commission now addresses the communication in question. 

The Complaint alleges that Honeycutt violated the Act's disclaimer provisions 

when Honeycutt authorized, and KFC paid for a communication, "Conupt," that failed to 

state lhat Deborsh T. Honeycutt IUthorizecl it or tbat HF't: paid for it. 'lbe available 

. i~f~tion, including the HPC's amendlll2008 Oclobt1r Quarterly Report and the 
I 

1
1• 

1 
·-· 

0 
••••• • I I Ill I 1 - 1 1 1 1 

inVGL'ce,see Complaint BxhihitA,Indicates thlt HPC in fact paid Sl,38,.75 for 25,000 

.. CCirrupt" ''rack cards" on Auguat 29, 2008'.. Howev•, neither 1he .. Conupt" 

communicalion, the Camplaint, nor other available infonnation indlcata how the 

communication was disseminated. HFC's amended October Quarterly Report includes 

disbursements on SeptemberS, 2008 to Donald W. Allen II, in the amount of$1,000.00 

for·consultinglcanvassing and on September 25, 2008 to Dan P. y.._ in the amount of. 

$4,000 for consultillJ(canvassin& which may be related to the dissemination of 

"Conupt." lfthe communication qualifies as a public communication, i.e..- if it was mass 

mail~,,. 11 C.P.Il. 1 100.27, or otl1erwise qualifies u genend pubfic poiRical 

ad~ing. the ccmll1llllli...- WCMJld Deed to oaain a dilclait.-ldBtil'l tllat HFC paid 

for •d althOiizecl the CDmmunication. S• 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a)(1~. BaiDae the 

communiation did nac include IUCh a disclaimor, Rapcmdeot may have violated 

2 U.S.C. § 441d(a). 

The available iaformaticm tiuther sugcsCI tbat such a violation may Jlave been 

kllowiq and willful. The phrase lcnowinalftd willfill indicates that "actiou [were] taken 

with ftdllcnowledp of all of the &ell and mcoanitioa that the action is prohibite!J by 
. •, 

· . 23 law ... 122 Cong. Rec. H 3778 (daily eel. May 3,1976); '" allo AFL-CIO v. FBC, 628 
... 
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s 

F.2d 97-98, 101-02 (D.C. Cir.), cert. de~~led, 449 U.S. 982 (1980) (noting that a•-wmful" 

violation includes "such reckless disregard of the consequences as to be equivalent to a 

knowins, conscious, and deliberate flaunting of the Act,"' but concluding on the t"acts 

before it that this standard was not met); National Right to Work Comm. v. FEC, 716 F.2d 

1461, 1403 (D.C. Clr. 1983) (same). The available infonnation indicates· that the HFC, 
.. ·. 

_ . . ..... __ .. ~. . ... ~h~sl!. i~ as~t Andrew Hone)CUU, ordered the "Ccltrupt11 eommuniCition,ll'ld as 
• • • o •• ... I I o o o o • • • '••-••• •• I o o o o lo • • o 

... . . 
~· 

... . 

7 indlated by lhe 48HeurPiintAOm in•oice, pravidelllhe persoal addraa of the 1rsndWate 

8 and campaiiP chainnan as the billing address. However, "Conupt'' includes 1 . 

9 disc.Jaimer .. "Paid for by DemocratsforOoodOovemment.com," and contains the same · 

10 headline, "The Worst Black Congressperson," and cartoon depiction of Rep. Scott u 

II Included on the 000 website. 

12" ... Honeycuti's apparent efforts to try to hide his involvement with tla' !'Corrupt" 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

c:ommunieatioa so that my recipients would not know that Honeyeutt or die Committee 

authorized and paid for --cortupt'' f\n1her supporll a reconmendatioa that Andrew 

Hoa..,_.tt knevflqly and wiAtblly vlolabiCI the Act. 1be aftilahle intbnnati011 indicaws 

an angoins mlacm.ltip htMen HP.C and Dnld Kne.c. ·• '"~* p.. 2 ba. 21· p. 3 111.7. 

In aMitina, the invaite at Camplaillt Bxbiblt A fidlasupgorts1bls ongoinJ Nlationsbip 

beaause it liD lhe Dllllle 11Andrevl' and t&e billiqa actct.. far the caodidate ~ her 

apouse qd CIDlpaip chainnan, Andrew Honeycutt, as weU as the llllllO '1David. • See 

6Upl"tl p. 4 ln. 14-22. By payiaa for a COIIIDlunicatioa with a disclaimer statina that a 

thlrd-pany orpnizatioa paid for It, Honeyautt attemptocl to conceal his identity u the 

penon that authorized aad that HFC paid for tbe 25.000 rack canta. HoReycutt attempted 

to avoid ay explicit coanecdon between the "Corrupt" communication and the 
. .; · .. · .· 
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:·."::· ... 

Honeycutt campaign by stating that DOG paid for the .. Corrupt" communication.3 Thus, 

Respondent appears to have knowingly and willfully violated the Act. AC<X)rdingly, the 

Commission finds reason to believe that Andrew Honeycutt. knowingly and willfully 

violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a). 

Z. Alleged Frndblent Mlsrepruentatlon 

..l~. ~i~~ ~he CoMplnint •Ue•s dtat, by laahaiiRg a ~epiction of a logo similar . . . ... . .. . . . . - . -- . . . . - -· . 

to the lop of the Dmlo~ Party 1111 "£onlllpt," Andrew IIIGney•Yit. actina cxJJ.Mif of 

HPC. frau•ulently:niarepresented that the mailer was disseminated by the Democratic 

Party. Complaint at S. The Act pohibits federal candidates and their employees or 

agents _ftom hudulently misrepresentina themselves, or any organization under their 

contrvl, aa speakins or otherwise acting on behalf of any other candidate or political party 

on a IRatter which is clamagins to such other candidate or party. 2 U.S.C.§44lh(a). 4 Ia 

past enfon:ement matters dealins witlt fiaudulent miuepreseneation alleptious, tbe 

Commfsaion hu focused its analysis on whether the Respondeat~ acting like the 

•oftiebll" party erpnizatt.-~. &'!fJ MIJR 491' (Chul• IJall ti.Jr Conpaa); au u MUR. 

54411 (NatiCMII O..aoratlc Cmplip Coum.). In [J«JR 49i 9 '(i.all), the Olmmiaion 

follllil rci8h!ft to llelievothll tho Commilf.ee, Canpip Mmap., &md Pinanae DiMia 

kn0\1dnily aDCI willfially vialatlll 2 U.S.C. §44th, Nld that the c.amittae tn•...-: 
violated 2 U.S.C. §44111, when Respondents, on llehalf of the Rep11bliean CJaRdiclate in 

the Calibaia'a 10111 Conareaional diserict. disseminated a communication within days of 
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the general election to Democratic voters in the district that was purportedly prepared by 

a fictitious local party committee. the East Bay Democratic Committee, and signed by a 

Democratic Consressman of a neighboring district that expressly advocated tbe defeat of 

the Democratic incumbent. The communication's text suggested that committee was a 

legftirr•ate-orpnization within the Democratic Party by including IIRIUBP such 11 

. ~R~~~d• all~~~}~ the Bast Bay~" The cammunicati• mpd the defeat of 
" I •• o 0 IIOI •• 0 0 I - •O II I·-

the i•umbeat but did not include a cii•laiiiiBI' ldeatifyina who paid for It or whether it 

waaiUlthorizcd by any CIIHiidab: ar ammnittee.5 

Unlike tbc e»mmunication iD MUR4919. in the instant matter. the •-corrupt" 

communication cannot be construed as an instrument of an 110fficial organization .. within 

the Democratic Party. Neither the complete name of the organization •Democrats for 

Good Government" nor the use of the word .. Democrat"· is sufficient to conclude that 

Respondents attempted to damage the Democratic Party. See 2 U.S.C. § 441h(a). 
' '· 

"Corrupt" does not contain text designed to make the communication appear that the 

so~ of this cammunication was the Dvmowatic Party. See Complaint Exhibit B. 

Altboup Debollh T. Honqcutt \Mihe Republican nominee in tile 2008 _..1 

election ... l .. licatt. the .,...noe of the doaliey lop Cla the "'xrupt~' 

commuoieatioo ctoes not rise to the level of a: violadon of section 441h(a). The ciGI1key 

lop, which is a generic symbol of the Democratic Party. is minimally displayed on the 

bottom teft portion of the "Corrupt" oommunlcation that apresaly advocates the defeat 

ofRep. Scott. S. Complaiat Bxhibit B. The available iafonnation does DOIIIIgeat that 

000 represents itself 11 an ann of the ofticial Democratic Party structure. auch u a . 

5 After •IDwldpdoa. t11e Qnnallliaa found pmbable e1111e to bellow a to Olarles BID for eaaar-, 
111 .. -.riDCl ... •ml ............. Cllldlil'ei wlda cJa.1....... ...-nft. 
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district or local party committee as defined at II C.P.R.§ 100.14(b). Accordingly, the 

2 there is no reason to believe allegation that Andrew Honeycutt, as an agent of HFC. 

3 ttauclulently misrepresented himself as acting on behalf of the Democratic Party. See 

4 2 U .S.C. § 441 h(a). 
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

RESPONDENT: Democrats for Good Government MUR 6138 

I. GENERA TJON OF MATTER 

This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission 

e'the Commission") by David Scott for Congress through its campaign manaser Kwame Vidal. 

See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(1). 

II. INTRODUCTION 

The complaint alleges that Democrats for Good Government ("DGG") received 

contributions and made an expenditure in excess of$1,000 in 2008, but failed to register with the 

Commission as a political committee. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434. Based upon the complaint, 

the response, and the available information, the Commission dismisses the allegation that 

Democrats for Good Government violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, and cautions the respondent. 1 

III. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

A. Factual Background 

DGG is not registered as a political committee with the Commission or the Georgia State 

Ethics Cormnission, and ia not registered with the IRS as a section 527 organization. DGG is 

comprised of a single member, its creator David Knox. According to DGG's website, it is "[t]he 

place to get the facts about Democrats who are really doing the work for Democrats." 

See http://www.democratsforgoodgovemment.com. However, the entire content ofthe website 

appears to focus on material opposing Rep. David Scott. See id 
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Included with the complaint was a communication herein entitled "Corrupt," a 3.5 x 8.5 

inch double-sided card. One side of the communication begins with the heading "CORRUPT 

DAVID SCOTT," followed by a picture of Rep. Scott and the statement "David Scott is 

CORRUPT!!!" The communication then refers the reader to www.voteoutdavidscott.com. The 

communication also contains a depiction of the Democratic Party donkey logo and-the tag line, 

"Your Vote Ceunts for Change!" TI1e other side of the communication refers to Scott as uThe 

Worst Black Congressperson," and includa a cBJtoon depiction of Rep. Scott sitting on a mound 

of cash with the U.S. Capitol in the background. Both &ides of the communication contain a 

disclaimer stating that it was paid for by ''DemocratsForGoodGovemment.com." See Complaint 

Exhibit B. 

The complaint also included an invoice dated August 26, 2008 from 48HourPrint.com in 

the amount of$1,385.75 for 25,000 double-sided copies of the "3.5 x 8.5 Rack Cards--

Corrupt." See Complaint Exhibit A. The invoice was billed to "Andrew'' at 160 Deer Forest 

Trail, Fayetteville, Georgia, and includes a "blind shipping address" for "David" at 2326 Nicole 

Drive, Hampton, Georgia. The invoice "Ship to" addressee is David Knox at an address in 

Jonesboro, Georgia. Public records indicate that Deborah and Andrew Honoycutt are the owners 

of the Fayeveville nddress. Deborah T. Honeycutt was the 2008 Republican candidate fot 

Congress opposing the Demacratic incumbent. Rep. David Scott, in the 13th Congressional 

District of Georgia. HFC is the principal campaign committee for Deborah T. Honeycutt, and 

her spouse, Andrew Honeycutt, is the Committee's campaign manager. 

David Knox personally designed and created the "Corrupt" communication. The 

available information does not suggest that DGG solicited or received contributions. The funds 

to print copies of "Corrupt" were provided by Andrew Honeycutt, who had known Knox 
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personally and professionally since 2003 through their membership in an Atlanta-area church. 

2 Knox asked Honeycutt for a personal loan to procure materials for DGG. Honeycutt provided 

3 Knox with HFC's debit card, which Knox used to pay $1,385.75 to 48HourPrint.com for copies 

4 of the "Corrupt" communication. According to Knox and Andrew Honeycutt, Knox later repaid 

5 Andrew Honeycutt for the funds used by Knox for the purchase of copies of the "Corrupt" 

6 communication in five installments. At the time of1the final payment, the total amount was 

7 deposited into HFC'u account. SltJ Honeycutt for Congress Response to Commission's 

8 Subpoenn ("HFC Response") Attachment 3. 

9 B. Legal Analysis 

10 The complaint alleges that in calendar year 2008 DGG received contributions and made 

11 expenditures in excess of the registration and reporting requirements of the Federal Election 

12 Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"). See 2 U .S.C. §§ 433 and 434. The Act defines 

13 a "political committee" as any committee, club, association, or other group of persons which 

14 receives "contributions" or makes "expenditures" for the purpose of influencing a Federal · 

15 election which aggregate in excess of$1,000 during a calendar year. 2 U.S.C. § 431(4)(A). The 

16 ten1t "contribution" is defined to include ''any gift, subscription, loan, advance, or deposit of 

17 money nr anything of value made by any person for the purpose of influencing any election for 

18 Federal office." 2 U.S.C. § 431(8)(A)(i). The term "e~enditure" is defined to include "any 

19 purchase, payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit, or gift of money or anything of value, 

20 made by any person for the purpose of influencing any election for Federal office." 2 U.S.C. 

21 § 431(9)(A)(i). Groups that trigger political committee status are required to register with the 

22 Commission and publicly repon all of their receipts and disbursements. 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 

23 and 434. 
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The Supreme Court has held that only organizations whose major purpose is campaign 

activity can potentia1ly qualify as political committees under the Act. See. e.g. Buckley v. Valeo, 

424 U.S. 1, 79 (1976); FECv. Massachusetts Citizensfor Life, 419 U.S. 238,262 (1986). The 

Commission has long applied the Court's major purpose test in detennining whether an 

organization is a "political committee" under the Act, and it interprets that test as limited to 

organizations whose mnj01· purpose is Fedora) campaign activity (i.e., the nr1minotiun or election 

of a Federal c~ndidate). See Pcditicnl Committee Status: Supplemental Explanatkm and 

Justification, 72 Fed. Rea. 5595, 5597, 5601 (Feb. 7, 2007). 

According to David Knox, DGG did not solicit or receive any contributions, and the 

available information does not suggest otherwise. Therefore, Knox's repayment to HFC of 

$1,385.75 for the printing cost of"Corrupt," apparently came from Knox's personal funds, not 

DGG's funds. To the extent that Knox was the ultimate payor of the $1,385.75 for the printing 

of the "Corrupt" communication that expressly advocated the defeat of Rep. Scott, under 

I I C.F.R § 100.22(a), it appears that DGG, through Knox, made expenditures by way of the 

'•Corrupt" communication. Therefore, DGO satisfied the statutory in excess of $1 ,000 

expenditure threshold far political committee status. Because DGG's sole acthtfty to date has 

been advocating the defeat: of Rep. Scott in his reelection .efforts, it also appears that DGG has 

met the Commission's major purpose test. As .such, it appears LIJat DOG may constitute a 

political committee under the Act. Nonetheless, under the circumstances present here, the 

Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses the allegation that Democrats 

for Good Government violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, and cautions the respondent. 

Knox stated that DGG has been dormant since 2008 and that its primary activity 

consisted of its websites, which were likely created and designed at minimal cost; however, 
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Knox still maintains the websites, and the www. voteoutdavidscott.com website was recently 

updated.1 The available information suggests that the ucorrupt" communication may have been 

minimally distributed. According to Knox, DOG does not have any bank accounts, and its only 

expense is a nominal monthly payment of$9.95 for webhosting. As evidenced by the fact that 

DOG through Knox had to borrow a relatively low amount of funds to finance the .. Corrupt" 

communication, it appears that DGG has no, o!llimited, funds of its own. Motoover, Knox stated 

that DOG has made no solicitations and received no coutriblltions, and the Commission has 

discovered no information to the contrary. Accordingly, consideliing DOG's limited conduct and 

apparent minimal costs spent toward the "Corrupt" communication and DOG's minimal activity 

since 2008, the Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses the allegation 

that Democrats for Good Government violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434 by failing to register and 

report as a political committee, and cautions this respondent. See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 

821 (1985). 

1 Knox recently updated his www. voteoutdavidscott.com website to include content alleging that Rep. 
Scott's conduct contributed to a county school district within the 13th Congressional District losing its accreditation. 
In addition, the website has been updated to include additional links to news articles critical ofRep. Scott. See 
www.voteoutdavidscott.com (last viewed July IS, 2011). 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 20463 

Scott Mackenzie 
Honeycutt for Congress 
1155 15th Street, NW Suite 614 
Washington, DC 20005 

Dear Mr. Mackenzie: 

Re: MUR6138 

On December l, 2008, the Federal Election Commission received a copy of a complaint 
alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended 
("the Act"). A copy of the complaint was forwarded at that time to Honeycutt for Congress and 
you, in your official capacity as treasurer ("Committee"). 

Upon further review of the aJlegations contained th the complaint, and information 
supplied by yoH, on May 25, 2010, the Commission found reason to believe that the Committee 
knowingly and willfully violated 2 U.S.C. § 44ld(a) and that the Committee violated 2 U.S.C. 
§ 434(b), provisions of the Act See the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis provided to 
the Committee on August 9, 2010. Based on the results of its investigation, the Commission 
determined, on October 18, 2011, to take no further action regarding its previous reason to 
believe findings. Accordingly, the C-ommission closed its file in this matter. 

Based on the information before the Commission, it appears that the Committee may 
have failed to timely diiclose a $1,385.75 disbursament and a $1,385.75 receipt related to an 
invoice from 48HourPrint.oom under 2 U .S.C. § 434(b ). The Commission cautions Honeycutt 
for Congress and you, in your official capacity as treasurer, to take steps to ensure that the 
Committee's conduct is in compliance with the Act and the Commission regulations. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. 
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files, 
68 Fed. Reg. 70426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General 
Counsel's Reports on the Public Reeord, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009}. 
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If you have any questions, please contact Shana M. Broussard, the attorney assigned to 
this matter, at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

~{JJA 
Mark Allen 
Assistant General Counsel 
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